
Meeting of:  Cabinet
Date: Tuesday, 27th August, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5.  MINUTES 3 - 11

To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held 30th July 
2019.

6.  ROCHDALE SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP COMMUNITY 
SAFETY PLAN 2019 - 2022 

12 - 21

To present the Council’s revised Community Safety Plan.

7.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Public Document Pack



Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

8.  LOCAL FULL FIBRE NETWORKS (LFFN) PROGRAMME 22 - 57

For Cabinet to consider recommendations on a Local Full Fibre 
Networks Programme.

Cabinet Members
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Allen Brett

Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Janet Emsley

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell

Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Sara Rowbotham

Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Alison James

01706 924711
alison.james@Rochdale.Gov.UK



CABINET

Minutes of the meeting held on
Tuesday, 30 July 2019

PRESENT:  

Councillor Allen Brett (in the Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Neil Emmott, 
Emsley, Iftikhar Ahmed, Blundell, Heakin, Rowbotham and Wardle

OFFICERS:  Steve Rumbelow – Chief Executive
Neil Thornton – Director of Resources
Gail Hopper – Director of Children’s Services
John Searle – Director of Economy
Donna Bowler – Assistant Director (Place)
Julie Murphy – Chief Finance Officer
David Wilcock – Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce)
Keith McKenzie – Head of Revenues and Benefits
Elaine Newsome – Head of Governance
Nick Barton – Principal Project Manager
Janet Butterworth – Property Client and Strategy Officer

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

Councillors Cocks, Dearnley, Hartley, Massey and Robinson

23. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

It was AGREED:

That an urgent item of business be considered in relation to property at Drake 
Street Rochdale.  This item was exempt from the public agenda as it related 
to the financial and business affairs of the organisation.  Cabinet noted that 
the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee had given the 
relevant permissions under the Council’s urgency provisions, for this item to 
be included on the agenda.

24. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on the 25th June 2019 were AGREED as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair

25. 2020/21 LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME

Cabinet considered a report outlining proposed changes to the Council’s Local 
Council Tax Support scheme for 2020/21. The changes are proposed so that 
the scheme remains fit for purpose for working age residents in receipt of 
Universal Credit.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Non-working age claimants (pensioners) and working age claimants not in 
receipt of Universal Credit are not affected by the proposal in this report.

Alternatives Considered

The current Local Council Tax Support scheme could continue unchanged for 
2020/21. As outlined above, this would create confusion and uncertainty for 
Universal Credit customers. The number of customers affected is currently 
4,610, but this will increase to around 6,000 by April 2020 and further increase 
during the 2020/21 and later financial years. Every change in income, 
however small, would result in a new council tax bill being issued with an 
amended payment plan. The average number of changes per year is currently 
four, but some customers will have as many as twelve changes in a year.

It was AGREED:

That approval be given to the proposal contained in this report for the 
purposes of a formal 10 week consultation process to be undertaken between 
12 August and 20 October 2019.

Reason for Decision

One of the changes introduced by Universal Credit (UC) is that any movement 
in a claimant’s income, however small, is reported to the Council. Under the 
2019/20 Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) scheme this means the Council 
must reassess their claim every time a change in income is notified. This in 
turn means a new council tax bill is issued, with a change to the payment 
plan. Current figures suggest an average of four changes reported per UC 
claim each year although it could be as many as twelve changes each year for 
fluctuating monthly incomes.

To make the Council’s LCTS scheme easier to understand and to avoid 
creating a new council tax bill every time a small change in UC income is 
reported, a new banded income scheme is recommended. This would mean 
that where a change in a resident’s UC income fell within the same weekly 
income band as their previous UC income was in; no change would be made 
to their LCTS award. In turn no new LCTS award letters or council tax bills 
would need to be issued.

26. FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2019/20

Cabinet considered a report on the Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial 
position as at the end of May 2019.

Alternatives considered

Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 

Page 4



identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

It was AGREED:

1. That the forecast 2019/20 budget positions for Capital, Revenue, 
Savings and the Collection Fund as at the end of May 2019 be noted.

2. That the capital scheme changes shown in section 4.1.2 of the report 
be noted.

3. That approval be given to re-phasing detailed in 4.1.3 of the report;

4. That the proposed virement detailed in 4.1.4 of the report be approved;

5.  That the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests detailed in 4.2.4. of 
the report be approved

Reason for Decision

Cabinet is responsible for the effective management of the agreed budget and 
should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, ensuring the 
financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards 
the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

27. BUDGET 2020/21 TO 2022/23 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND PUBLIC 
ENGAGEMENT

Cabinet considered a report on the proposed budget guidelines, timetable and 
method of public engagement to be used in preparing the detailed 2020/21 
budget and provisional budgets for 2021/22 and 2022/23.

Members further considered an update on the latest budget position for the 
Council and Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning 
Group.

Alternatives Considered

None.  The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is 
equally important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services

Page 5



It was AGREED:

1. That the proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1 to the report 
be approved.

2. That the revenue assumptions detailed in section 4.2 of the report to be 
incorporated into the budget setting process.

3. That the revenue and capital budget principles referred to in section 4.5 
of the report be approved; 

4. That the proposed methods of public engagement outlined in section 
4.6 of the report as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process be 
approved;

5. That the updated Revenue Budget position for 2020/21 to 2022/23 be 
noted.

6. That the Budget Review Sessions to be undertaken as part of the 
2020/21 budget setting process be noted.

Reason for Recommendation

Under the Budget & Policy Framework Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement for setting 
the 2020/21 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2021/22 and 2022/23 by 
September each year.

28. DISPOSAL OF LAND AT STARKEY STREET / LANGTON STREET 
HEYWOOD

Cabinet considered proposals for the disposal of sites at Starkey Street and 
Langton Street in Heywood.  The sites were considered to be surplus to the 
Council’s operational requirements.  The sale of the sites would generate a 
capital receipt for the Council and reduce its maintenance liabilities.

Consultation had been carried out with the North Heywood ward councillors 
and the Chair of Heywood Township.  Objections have been raised to the sale 
of Langton Street car park – plot 3 on the plan below.

In view of the objections raised Cabinet were requested to consider the future 
of the site by using its powers to release these sites for disposal.

Alternatives Considered

The site could be retained in its current use. Retention of this site will not 
secure capital receipts or beneficial development, nor reduce the Council’s 
financial and/or environmental liabilities. Retaining this site in its current use 
carries the risk of liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour and 
regular or ad hoc maintenance obligations

Page 6



Plot 3 could be retained as a car park and only plots 1 and 2 released for 
development.  

It was AGREED:

1. That the sites at Starkey Street and Langton Street be declared surplus 
to requirements and released for disposal on the open market.

2. That the Head of Legal Service be authorised to prepare the 
appropriate legal documents and execute such documents on behalf of 
the Council.

3. That any purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.

Reason for decision

The Director of Economy is charged with the continual review of the Council’s 
land and property holdings to identify those that are surplus to requirements 
and could be sold. The Director of Economy is aiming to expose 25 sites to 
the market during 2019/20.

Plots 1 and 2 on the plan below are areas of open space that have low 
amenity value.  Plot 3 is a community car park that is used mainly by local 
businesses.  Together the sites form a valuable development plot that would 
support a small residential development.

29. EXTRA SCHOOL PLACES - DETERMINATION OF STATUTORY 
PROPOSALS FOR ENLARGEMENTS AND SEN RESOURCED 
PROVISION, AND ADDITIONAL CAPACITY

Cabinet considered a report outlining responses to the published proposals for 
the capacity changes, service provision and associated expenditure within a 
number of schools in the Borough:

Alternatives Considered

The School Organisation and Development Team within Early Help and 
Schools aims to listen to suggestions from the consultations it runs on extra 
capacity in both its primary and secondary school estates. The decision to 
currently reject the expansion at Crossgates Primary for 2021 may have to be 
revisited in the future.

It was AGREED:

1. That the enlargement of Castleton Primary School be approved to 
provide an additional 30 places in each new admission year group. The 
enlargement would make permanent an admission number of 60 from 
September 2019.

Page 7



2. That the rejection of the enlargement of Crossgates Primary School be 
noted, with the retention of admission numbers at 45 places per year 
group.

3. That the creation of an autism Resourced Provision at Shawclough 
Primary school be approved to provide an additional 12 places for 
children with an EHCP for autism.

4. That approval be given for expenditure for the implementation of an 
expansion at St Johns Thornham; for invitations to tender to be issued 
and accepted and for the supporting contracts, and any incidental and 
ancillary documentation, to be signed in order to deliver the scheme in 
accordance with Financial Regulations. 

5. That approval be given for expenditure of additional funds for the 
implementation of the plan to deliver up to 120 extra secondary school 
places within the boroughs existing schools for the 2020 intake year to 
meet the predicted need.

6. That approval be given for additional Basic Need Programme spend of 
£2,185,000 for the projects relating to St Johns Thornham and the 
extra secondary school places as set out in Appendix 1 to the report.

Reason for Decision

There is a need for extra primary school places as detailed in the previous 
report to Cabinet on the 26 February 2019. 

Each local authority has a statutory duty to secure a sufficient number of 
places in each of their areas.

30. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was AGREED:

That the Press and Public be excluded from the following items of business in 
accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Reason for Decision

Should the press and public remain during the business to be transacted, 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Part 3 of Schedule 12aA of the Local Government Act 1972

31. LAND AT WILLIAM STREET AND TONGE MEADOW, MIDDLETON

Cabinet considered a report outlining proposals for the acquisition of land at 
Tonge Meadow, Middleton. The acquisition would be on the basis of an 
exchange for the funding of improvements to adjacent playing pitches at 
Middleton Technology School.

Page 8



The report also detailed options for the marketing and sale of land at Tonge 
Meadow and William Street for residential development, to support the repair 
and restoration of Tonge Hall.

Alternatives Considered

There is no “do nothing” option, the Council is currently doing a minimum 
amount of work to protect the historic asset from vandalism and weather 
damage, with capital and revenue costs.

There is a significant conservation deficit related to the repair and restoration 
of the hall, meaning that any scheme to repair and restore the hall would 
require significant subsidy or grant support.

Grants from organisations such as Heritage Lottery Fund and Historic 
England have been considered as part of the feasibility for this project, these 
are likely to be limited and would require match funding.

The following decisions were AGREED:

The acquisition of land identified as plots 4, 5 and 6 on the plan attached to 
the report, in exchange for works to playing fields at Middleton Technology 
School and any future capital receipt in relation to plot 5.

Marketing and disposal of plots 1, 2, 3 and 4 (identified in the report)  for 
residential development, with the acceptance of sale delegated to the Director 
of Economy in Consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning, 
Development and Housing.

That the balance of the capital receipt, following the completion of the playing 
pitch works, be ring-fenced for the repair and restoration of Tonge Hall. 

A capital virement to resolve potential timing issue as detailed in 5.3 of the 
report.

That decisions around opting to tax the land identified in this report be 
delegated to the Chief Finance Officer.

That the Assistant Director of Legal, Governance & Workforce be authorised 
to advise appropriate Council Services, prepare the appropriate legal 
documents and execute such documents on behalf of the Council in 
connection with the acquisition and disposal of these plots.

Reasons for Decision

Tonge Hall is a Grade II* Manorial Hall in the ownership of Rochdale Borough 
Council. The hall is on Historic England’s Heritage at Risk register.

Page 9



The hall suffered a catastrophic fire in 2007, whilst in private ownership, the 
Council has secured the site and protected it from vandalism and weather 
damage for more than ten years, with the ultimate aim of repair and 
restoration of the hall.

Feasibility work has established that the conservation deficit associated with 
the hall can be met through the sale of land largely in Council ownership close 
to the hall, without damaging the historic setting of the hall.

There is a requirement to acquire land from Middleton Technology School to 
facilitate access, increase the developable area of land and increase the value 
of the Council’s land holdings.

The project will also facilitate the improvement of playing pitches and creation 
of new employment land with associated benefits to the local community and 
wider Middleton Township.

Opting to tax the relevant land and buildings may be necessary to ensure 
RBC remains below its 5% partial exemption limit for VAT (as the cost of 
breaking the exemption limit would be estimated at around £1m per annum).

The acquisition of land from Middleton Technology School will be structured to 
ensure that the deal is not considered a barter transaction for the avoidance of 
VAT or Stamp Duty.

32. PROPERTY AT DRAKE STREET - ROCHDALE

Cabinet considered a report on the proposed acquisition of 38-40 Drake 
Street to support the regeneration of Drake Street and the wider town centre.

The report detailed negotiations with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to use 
this property in conjunction with adjacent sites to bring forward the 
development of a 15,000 sq. office development to provide a corporate 
headquarters and customer contact centre.

Alternatives Considered

The option of the property being acquired directly by Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing has been considered, however this would significantly diminish the 
influence that the Council have in relation to this strategically important site.

The option of pursuing acquisition using Compulsory Purchase powers has 
been considered, however this was the case the CPO process is a lengthy 
process and would not be finalised within required timescales 

It was AGREED

1. To approve the acquisition of 38-40 Drake Street at above market 
value for the purposes of supporting the proposed development of a 
corporate headquarters and customer contact centre by Rochdale 

Page 10



Boroughwide Housing and the wider regeneration benefits that this will 
bring to Drake Street and Rochdale town centre.

2. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal Services, Governance 
& Workforce) be authorised to act on behalf of the Council in 
connection with the acquisition of this property.

3. A report will be submitted to a future meeting of Cabinet with regard to 
any onward disposal.

Reason for Decision

1. The acquisition of this property is required to support the development 
of a significant development within a key regeneration area.

2. The regeneration benefits of this development will be considerable and 
it meets a number of the strategic objectives of the Council.

The meeting commenced at 6.00pm and closed at 6.34pm

Page 11



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting Meeting date 27th August 
2019

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Mark Dalzell
Public/Private Document Public

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Community Safety Plan 
2019 - 2022

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to present the council’s revised Community 
Safety Plan that is formulated and delivered by the Community Safety 
Partnership.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members approve the plan in appendix 1

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) has a duty under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to draw up and implement a strategy for reducing crime and 
disorder in their area.

The Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy) 
Regulations 2007 set out the way in which the responsible authorities should 
carry out their functions as a CSP under Section 6 of the Act, and require the 
preparation of a partnership plan for the local government area, setting out the 
CSP’s priorities.

The current plan covers the period of 2015 – 2018.  A new plan is required to 
outline the priorities that are to be the focus of delivery plans by responsible 
authorities.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The plan supports the development of simpler plans that are accessible and 
customer facing.

The revised plan has been informed by information from the residents’ 
survey in 2018 and a strategic threat assessment that included qualitative 
and quantitative data to assess the scale, trend, intelligence assessment 
and knowledge of themes.

Themes considered included:

 Residential Burglary
 Serious Violent Crime
 Child Sexual Exploitation
 Youth related anti-social behaviour
 Modern Slavery
 Domestic Abuse
 Organised Crime
 Substance Abuse – including drugs and new psychoactive 

substances
 Night time economy and issues in our town centres
 Community tensions
 Sexual offences
 Cyber Enable Fraud

Workshops with the responsible authorities ranked the thematic areas using 
a Management of Risk in Law Enforcement (MoRiLE) assessment model to 
rank the priority areas and create agreed priority work areas for the 
formulation of delivery plans to achieve the desired outcomes of the 
strategy.

The plan has been endorsed by the Community Safety Partnership with the 
five priority areas so that people and communities in Rochdale will be :

• Free from the harm of domestic abuse and violence
• Free from the harm of organised crime and exploitation 
• Safe from crime and antisocial behaviour
• Able to enjoy themselves in the town centres
• Able to live, work, learn and socialise in harmony

The plan takes account of and links to the priorities in The Police and Crime 
Plan, ‘Standing Together’ (Greater Manchester Combined Authority).

The plan supports the outcomes identified by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and the outcomes described in the Corporate Plan 2019 – 2022.

Delivery plans for the five areas are being developed by priority sub groups 
under the Safer Communities Partnership Board to take account of existing 

Page 13



work streams, including the work of Safeguarding boards, to avoid 
duplication and to share information to maintain and further develop a 
partnership approach to community safety.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The plan takes account of the council’s Financial Strategy.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are risks associated with community safety that must be mitigated 
through a partnership response to emerging threats and intelligence.  The 
plan is reviewed annually to ensure that the priorities are aligned 
appropriately.

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, as amended by the Police 
and Justice Act 2006, requires responsible authorities to consider crime and 
disorder (including antisocial behaviour and other behaviour adversely 
affecting the local environment); and the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other 
substances in the exercise of all their duties, activities and decision-making. 
This means that in all policies, strategies and service delivery there is a need 
to consider the likely impact on crime and disorder.
 

6.

Consultation

7. Residents Survey -  2018
Communities, Regeneration and Environment O & S – 21 November 2018
Safer Communities’ Partnership Board – 23rd April 2019

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Mark Dalzell, Tel: 01706 924328, 
mark.dalzell@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 14



ROCHDALE SAFER  
COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP
Protecting and strengthening communities and places
Our plan 2019 - 2022

Safer Rochdale
Rochdale • Middleton • Heywood • Pennines

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   1 25/06/2019   10:15

P
age 15



We are confident that the new 
Community Safety Plan will help us to 
respond appropriately to current and 
emerging issues that affect our local 
and diverse communities. 

Our approach is simple - it’s about 
cooperation, people behaving in ways 
that have a positive impact on our 
borough and working together to tackle 
negative behaviour. 

Everyone has a responsibility to protect 
and strengthen our communities and 
places.

We are committed to ensuring our 
communities remain confident and 
supported, feel safe and are safe. 

Rochdale faces significant challenges 
and our partnership plan ensures that 
we are tackling the issues that have the 
most impact on our people and places. 

We have successfully developed 
partnership working and continue to 
improve community engagement and 
participation, to deliver reductions in 
crime and antisocial behaviour and 
improved community safety.

Foreword

Steve Rumbelow,  
Chief Executive,  
Rochdale Borough Council

Neil Evans,  
Territorial Commander,  
Rochdale, Oldham and Tameside

2 3

The borough of Rochdale is one of ten local authority 
areas in Greater Manchester and part of the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). Sitting 
within the north east section of the region, the 
borough is strategically-placed between a number of 
important locations and is undergoing a huge, positive 
transformation. 

According to the Office for National Statistics’ 2017 
mid-year population estimates, there are 218,400 
people living in the borough of Rochdale.

The borough is divided between five ‘township’ areas – 
Rochdale north, Rochdale south, Heywood, Middleton, 
and Pennines. Each area has its own distinct identity 
and character and the townships contain several other 
communities.

Although there are areas of relative wealth within 
the borough, there are a number of areas that fall 
within the most deprived in the country. The normal 
challenges associated with areas of high deprivation 
can be found in these areas.

There are also areas with high levels of diversity 
within the borough and in some wards more than  
40 per cent of residents are from a BME background.

 

Introduction

Welcome to Rochdale’s Community Safety Plan. 

The plan sets out how we can make the borough a safe and welcoming place 
for everyone.

We all need to behave in ways that have a positive impact on those that live,  
work or visit.

We all need to work together to tackle behaviour that has a negative impact  
on our borough.

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   2-3 25/06/2019   10:15

P
age 16



Our aims
Helping each other to feel safe -  
Assisting those living in Rochdale homes and neighbourhoods, as well 
as those who work or visit the borough.

Strengthening our sense of community -  
Encouraging strong and positive relationships between people from 
different backgrounds and creating a feeling of belonging in our 
neighbourhoods.

Increasing confidence in our response to crime and disorder -  
Ensuring that people are happy with the way that we deal with 
offenders and support victims of crime.

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership (RSCP)

4 5

Priorities and Themes

People and communities in Rochdale will be:

•  Free from the harm of domestic abuse  
and violence

•  Free from the harm of organised crime  
and exploitation  

• Safe from crime and antisocial behaviour

• Able to enjoy themselves in the town centres

•  Able to live, work, learn and socialise in 
harmony

Our work will be focused on:

• Raising awareness

• Enabling challenge

• Changing behaviours

• Safeguarding vulnerable people

• Providing support for victims

• Dealing with offenders and reoffenders

Our Priorities Our Themes

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership uses a variety data to understand the issues 
that cause most harm and that matter most to our residents, including strategic threat 
assessments and resident surveys. 

Strategic threat assessments look at crime rates and volumes to tell us what crime types 
pose a threat to communities. Resident surveys gather the views of local people about crime 
and safety in the borough of Rochdale and Greater Manchester. The information helps us to 
determine our priorities.

We have identified five priorities for protecting and strengthening communities and places. 
These are the areas that really need our attention, although we will continue to address other 
crime and community safety issues.  

We have also identified six themes around which our work will be focused.

Rochdale is required to have a Safer Communities Partnership, by law.

The Partnership is made up of representatives from Rochdale Borough Council, the police, the fire service, the probation service, 
the local clinical commissioning group and other organisations.

The Partnership supports the priorities set out in the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Plan.

The Partnership aims to tackle crime in the borough and the underlying causes of it.

The Partnership uses a mix of prevention and intervention activity as part of its policing and community safety work.

The Partnership shares money and resources to commission services and implement effective approaches.

Police and Crime Plan priorities
To keep people safe -  
For those who live, work, socialise and travel in Greater Manchester, 
as well as protecting those who are vulnerable.

To reduce harm and offending -  
Preventing antisocial and criminal behaviour by intervening earlier 
and rehabilitating offenders.

To strengthen communities and places -  
By helping to build resilient communities and strengthening the 
delivery of public assets.

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   4-5 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 17



What is it?
Domestic abuse is any incident or pattern of incidents 
of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, 
violence or abuse that can have a psychological, 
physical, sexual, economic or emotional impact on 
another person.

Why is it important?
Domestic abuse is a cruel and complex crime that 
can affect anyone. Tackling domestic abuse ensures 
that lives are not destroyed and people do not have to 
endure physical and emotional scars.

 
 

What does success look like?
•  Children and adults understand about healthy 

relationships 

•  Families are able to effectively deal with and 
manage conflict 

•   Children and young people are protected from the 
effects of domestic abuse

•  Communities and agencies report and refer  
incidents of domestic abuse 

•  People who engage in domestic abuse are deterred 
from their activities and prosecuted

•  People who are at risk of or suffering domestic 
abuse are protected

•  Offenders engage in behaviour and lifestyle 
programmes to enable rehabilitation and minimise 
reoffending

•  Victims (including specific groups LGBT+, elderly 
etc.) and those impacted by domestic abuse are 
able to access services, support packages and safe 
accommodation

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be free from the harm of domestic abuse and violence

6 7

What is it?
Organised crime is crime that is planned, coordinated 
and conducted by people working together on a 
continuing basis, often for financial gain and involving 
violence, threat of violence, bribery and corruption.

Why is it important?
Organised crime can make communities fearful 
and divided and encourage other types of crime and 
antisocial behaviour. Disrupting organised crime 
ensures that people are not deprived of their security, 
prosperity and identity.

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  Children and adults understand the reality and 

consequences of organised crime 

•  Children and young people are protected from 
becoming victims of exploitation

•  Communities and agencies report and support our 
work in disrupting organised crime 

•  People who support and benefit from participating 
in organised crime are deterred from their 
activities and prosecuted

•  Offenders engage in behaviour and lifestyle 
programmes to enable rehabilitation and minimise 
reoffending

•  Victims, witnesses and communities affected by 
serious and organised crime are able to access 
services and support packages 

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be free from the harm of organised crime and exploitation

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   6-7 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 18



What is it?
Town centres have shops and can have major public 
transport hubs such as train or bus stations; public 
buildings such as town halls and libraries, statues and 
public spaces. Town centres are important to a local 
thriving economy.

Why is it important?
Town centres have a higher concentration of people, 
places and spaces that can make them vulnerable 
to crime and antisocial behaviour. Creating more 
desirable town centres attracts people to live, work 
and visit. 

 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  Buildings and places have good security making 

them less vulnerable to crime

•  Children and adults know what measures they can 
take to stay safe in the day and night time economy            

•  Persistent offenders are excluded from town 
centres and retail premises

• Licensed premises are managed and controlled

•  The transport network and traffic violations are 
managed and controlled to enable safer travel

•  The environment (including lighting, litter, graffiti) 
is managed and controlled so that town centres 
offer a positive experience  

•  Vulnerable individuals in town centres are able to 
access services and support packages

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be able to enjoy themselves in the town centres

What is it?
Crime and antisocial behaviour is illegal or 
unacceptable activity that can cause harm to 
individuals, communities or environments.  
Some activity is punishable by law. 

Why is it important?
Crime and antisocial behaviour has a negative 
impact on society and the economy and the disruption 
it causes can last for a long time. Tackling it helps to 
improve the quality of life for people that live, work  
or visit the borough. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  Children and adults understand about activities 

that can lead to crime and different types of crime 
(including hidden crimes)

•  People know what measures they can take to 
protect themselves from crime and antisocial 
behaviour

•  Families are supported to change behaviours of 
children and young people exhibiting problem 
behaviour

•  Individuals and families are supported to change 
behaviours and situations that precede offending

•  People who engage in nuisance behaviour and 
crime are deterred from their activities and 
prosecuted (in particular prejudice motivated 
crimes and more serious violent crimes)

•  Offenders engage in behaviour and lifestyle 
programmes to enable rehabilitation and minimise 
reoffending

•  Victims (in particular those at a higher risk 
of crime and repeat victims), witnesses and 
communities are able to access services and 
support packages

People and communities in Rochdale  
will be safe from crime and antisocial behaviour 

8 9

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   8-9 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 19



•  Feeling of safety (at home, work, socialising, 
travelling)

•  Confidence in accessing the police in an emergency 
situation

•  Confidence in accessing the police, local authority or 
criminal justice service in a non-emergency situation

•  Satisfaction with services received (from the council, 
police or criminal justice system)

•  Satisfaction with cleanliness and maintenance of 
the area

• Feeling that there is a sense of community

Measuring success

We will monitor and report on these key indicators, so we know if the 
Partnership is meeting its aims.

We will also monitor our performance for each of the priorities.

Key indicators:

For more information visit rochdale.gov.uk

What is it?
Cohesive and integrated communities is about 
people – whatever their background – living, working, 
learning and socialising together, based on shared 
rights, responsibilities and opportunities. 

Why is it important?
When communities are divided along race, faith or 
socio-economic lines, this can lead to increased levels 
of fear, inequality, prejudice and conflict. Evidence 
shows that a less cohesive and integrated community 
faces challenges around economic, cultural and social 
opportunities.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What does success look like?
•  A borough where people, whatever their 

background, live, work, learn and socialise 
together, based on shared rights, responsibilities 
and opportunities 

•  A borough, where many religions, cultures and 
opinions are celebrated, underpinned by a shared 
set of values that champion tolerance, freedom and 
equality of opportunity 

•  Support is available for new and emerging 
communities that integrate and have an ability to 
adapt to migration

People and communities in Rochdale Borough  
will be able to live, work, learn and socialise in harmony 

10 11

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   10-11 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 20



Safer Rochdale
Rochdale • Middleton • Heywood • Pennines

Associated Plan

Standing Together Plan for Greater Manchester: link to 
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/police-plus-
fire/police-and-crime-plan

Finding out more about the RSCP

Email: community.safety@rochdale.gov.uk

Call: 0300 303 8878

Write to: 
Community Safety
Floor 2
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU

For more information and to report antisocial behaviour visit 
rochdale.gov.uk

8571_RSCP_CommunitySafetyPlan_2019-2022_V2.indd   12 25/06/2019   10:16

P
age 21

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/police-plus-fire/police-and-crime-plan


Document is Restricted

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 48

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Community Safety Plan 2019 - 2022
	Append. 1 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Community Safety Plan 2019 - 2022

	8 Local Full Fibre Networks (LFFN) Programme
	Append. 1 for Local Full Fibre Networks (LFFN) Programme
	Append. 3 for Local Full Fibre Networks (LFFN) Programme
	Append. 4 for Local Full Fibre Networks (LFFN) Programme


